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GENEVA MINE

The "Geneva Mine" (GM) 1is located in the mouth of Horse
Canyon in the Northeastern corner of Emery County, Utah.
Although "Geneva" is the mine's official name, it is
probably better know as the "Horse Canyon Mine" (HCM) or
just plain "Horse Canyon" (HC).

The exact relationship between the private steel

industry and the U.S. Government at the deginning of the
mine planning is not known to the author, but the mine was
as intregal part of the giant steel mill located near Orem,
Utah. The steel mill and the coal mine were managed by the
Defense Plant Corporation (DFC) of World War II vintage.

Metallurgical quality (coking) coal, in the state of

Utah, has only been mined in the upper and lower Sunnyside
coal seams located in Eastern Carbon and Emery Counties.

The mines located at Sunnyside and Columbia had produced
cpking coal for many years; so it was logical that a new
mine to produce coal for steel making should be located as
close as possible to the known coking coal producers. Steel
was being produced at the Ironton Plant of the United State
Steel Corporation (USSC), located near Springville, Utah, at
the time. Ironton works used iron ore from Cedar City

area, limestone from quarries near Payson, and coal from the
Columbia Mine. The new Geneva Steel Mill of the Defense
Plant Corporation would do essentially the same.

Preliminary sampling of the coal at HC to determine

it's suitability for making coke was done during the summer
of 1941. The engineering and construction contracting firm
of Allen & Garcia broke ground to build GM in early 1942.
By the end of 1942, the highway from the Columbia area, the
water pipeline, and the railroad to the mine had been
completed. Preliminary development of the mine proper had
been done and upon completion of the railroad, coal was
actually shipped by the end of that year.

Early production was accomplished with shortwall
cutting machines, post drills, blasting and loading.




Loading in relatively level entries was by rail-mounted
loading machines. The steeper areas were mined up-hill and
utilized shaking conveyors for loading the coal. Production
methods phased through various types of equipment until
approximately 1955 when continuous mining machines and
auxiliary equipment were introduced. This method of
producing the coal continued until the mine closed in 1982.

Corporate ownership and management of the mine changed
from the DFC to USSC in 1946. At that time the management
of the mine was tied in closely with the Raw Materials Dept.
of the Columbia-Geneva Steel Division (C-GSD) of the USSC
with headquarters in Orem, Utah. In 1964, the C-GSD was re-
organized and became a part of the USSC headquartered in
Pittsburgh, PA. This continued until the mid 1970°s when
USSC formed a wholly owned subsidiary to manage all of the
corporation’s coal mines. The new organization was named U.
S. Steel Mining Company (USSMC).

With a 40 year operating period (1942-1982), the mine
went through many phases. Peak production was in the mid to
late ’'40’s when as many as 800 employees mined nearly a
million tons of coal per year. Poor steel markets dictated
production requirements as low as .2 million tons per year
and finally closing in October of 1982. Essentially 100% of
the 40 years of production was delivered to the Geneva Steel
plant in Orem.

Geneva Mine was sold to Kaiser Coal Company in December
of 1984. The Intermountain Power Agency acguired the mining
properties early in 1990.




